
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107 – 117 Botchergate  

Carlisle  Cumbria  CA1 1RD  
Tel 01228 227354  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

  

 

 
1 

2 June 2022 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the County 

Council Local Committee for South 
Lakeland 

 

Agenda 
 
 

COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR SOUTH 

LAKELAND 
 
 
A meeting of the County Council Local Committee for South Lakeland will be held as 
follows:  
 
 Date: Friday 10 June 2022 

 Time: 2pm 

 Place: Council Chamber, County Offices, Kendal 

 
 
Dawn Roberts 
Executive Director– Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Nicola Harrison 
Direct Line: 07825 832 545 
Email: nicola.harrison@cumbria.gov.uk   
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 



 
2 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Conservative (5) Liberal Democrat (11) 
 

Mr B Berry 
Mr RK Bingham 
Mr J Bland 
Mr M Brereton 
Mr WJ Wearing 
 

Mr W Clark 
Mr SB Collins 
Mr GD Cook (Vice-Chair) 
Mr N Cotton (Chair) 
Mrs S Evans 
Mrs BC Gray 
Mr C Hogg 
Mr P McSweeney 
Mrs S Sanderson 
Mr P Thornton 
Mrs J Willis 
 

Labour (1) 
 
Mr M Wilson 
 

The Green Party (1) 
 
Ms J Filmore 

 
 
Parish Council (1) 
 

South Lakeland District Council 
(2) 
 

Mr L Hallatsch Mr J Brook  
Dr A Jarvis 

 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk   
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


 
3 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
 
2   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
There were no questions, petitions or statements at the time of despatch of Agenda 
 
 
3   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any items on the agenda. 
 
 
4   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a)  Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
 executed; and  
 

 (b)  Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  



 
4 

 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial     
 interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
 area of the authority; and 
 
 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
 hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
 
 
5   SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL LEVELLING UP FUND 

APPLICATION 
 

[Electoral Divisions: Kendal Highgate & Kendal Strickland & Fell] 
 
To consider a report from the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure 
 
This report requests Local Committee to provide a position on the proposals undergoing 
consideration on the regeneration of Kendal town centre and its high street offer  

(Pages 5 - 10) 
 
6   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting will be held on 6 July 2022 10.00am at County Offices, Kendal. 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR 
SOUTH LAKELAND 

Meeting date: 10 June 2022 

From:  Executive Director – Economy and 
Infrastructure 

 
 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL LEVELLING UP 

FUND APPLICATION 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 Round 2 of the Government Levelling Up Fund opened March 2022 with 
applications due by July 6th 2022. 
 

1.2 Working closely with Cumbria County Council, South Lakeland District 
Council is developing an application focused on the regeneration of the town 
centre and its high street offer, including improvements to the outdoor 
market and the delivery of active travel improvements along the riverside.  

1.3 It is intended that these measures would strengthen the regional role of 
Kendal and support the Council’s ambition around the delivery of active and 
sustainable transport in the creation of attractive places and vibrant 
communities. In line with the constitution Local Committee is requested to 
provide a position on the proposals undergoing consideration.  

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The proposal under consideration supports the ambitions of Council 
Plan priorities. 

2.2 The project intends to support economic activity and inclusive growth 
by optimising the gateways and active travel routes in the town centre 
to promote sustainable and inclusive economic growth. 

2.3 The proposal will see investment in  the river corridor to improve 
connectivity across Kendal through improved local infrastructure for 
active travel. 

5

Agenda Item 5



 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To support, in principle, South Lakeland District Council’s proposed 
Levelling Up Fund application 

3.2 Delegate the signing of a letter of support to the Local Committee Chair 
in consultation with the Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure 
following receipt of the detailed proposals 

BACKGROUND 

4.1 In 2021 the Government announced the £4.8bn Levelling Up Fund (LUF) 
which was to be allocated over two competitive funding rounds.  £1.7bn was 
allocated in Round 1 and Round 2 opened March 2022 with applications due 
by July 6th 2022. 

4.2 LUF funding is for capital schemes encompassing transport, culture or 
regeneration; with one successful application allowed per MP constituency  
area.  Proposals can seek up to £20m of investment. 

4.3 While funding is to be allocated following a competitive process; across the 
UK places have been prioritised for funding by the Government following a 
qualitative assessment process with Barrow, Copeland and Allerdale all 
identified as “Category 1” priority locations.  South Lakeland has been 
identified as “Category 3” creating an expectation that applications would 
need to be “exceptional” if they are to be successful. 

4.4 Since May 2021, and with the close support of Cumbria County Council; 
South Lakeland District Council has been developing a proposal which could 
be put forward to the second round of the competition.  The development of 
this scheme has been further supported by the establishment of a “Kendal 
Town Team” which is working  together for Kendal, comprising members of 
the County, District, Town Council and Kendal Futures. 

4.5 The application in development centres around two project elements: 

Project A – Town Centre Regeneration 

1. New education accommodation at the Westmorland Shopping Centre. 

2. Regeneration of the historic Market Hall;  

3. Regeneration of the Market Place; 

Project B – Riverside Corridor 

4. Upgrades to a section of the riverside active travel route between 
Lowther St and Abbot Hall to improve connectivity between key assets in 
the town centre 

 

 

6



 

4.6 Together it is intended that these proposals can support the role of Kendal 
as a place to live, work and invest;  making the most of the town’s historic 
and natural capital.  In particular it is considered that that it can better meet 
the needs of younger people and business bringing through a focus on 
further embedding education in the heart of the town alongside an improved 
market offer.  The project also seeks to support cycling and walking 
infrastructure utilising the riverside corridor, building on one of Kendal’s most 
important assets.  This approach and ambition is  consistent with the 
Cumbria Transport Infrastructure Plan and recently adopted Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan. 

4.7 While South Lakeland District Council is the applicant, Cumbria County 
Council is supporting South Lakeland District Council to develop design and 
cost plans for the Riverside Cycleway and improvements to the Market 
Square and will ensure local members remain briefed as  proposals are 
developed.  

4.8 Funding decisions on LUF are expected later this year.  If the bid is 
successful, delivery of the scheme will fall to the new Westmorland and 
Furness Council.  Financial risk associated with delivery will be with the new 
Council and in mitigation there will be allowances for cost risk, contingency 
and inflation within the cost plan.   

4.9 In considering SLDC’s application the constitution is clear that a role of the 
Local Committee is to “determine the Council's position in respect of any 
proposal or business plan submitted by any other body under the Town 
Fund, Levelling-Up Fund (other than a bid submitted by the Council under its 
power to submit a transport bid under the Levelling-Up Fund), Future High 
Street Fund or any other similar government programme that provides 
funding for local schemes which relates entirely to the Local Committee's 
area, as determined in writing by the Leader”.   

5.0 OPTIONS 

5.1 Option 1: Support the proposed LUF application in principle 

5.2 Option 2: Do not support the LUF application in principle; this would create a 
risk to the ultimate success of the application. 

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no direct resource implications arising from the recommendations 
which are to indicate the Council’s written support for the Levelling Up Fund 
application by South Lakeland District Council. NG 30/5/22 

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The Local Committee is authorised to determine the Council's position in 
respect of any proposal or business plan submitted by any other body under 
the Town Fund, Levelling-Up Fund (other than a bid submitted by the 

7



 

Council under its power to submit a transport bid under the Levelling-Up 
Fund), Future High Street Fund or any other similar government programme 
that provides funding for local schemes which relates entirely to the Local 
Committee's area, as determined in writing by the Leader.  In consequence 
the Local Committee is authorised to accept the recommendation to support 
the LUF application.. 

8.0 CONCLUSION 

8.1 While the delivery of LUF scheme will follow a competitive process, the 
application being developed by SLDC, if delivered, would have the potential 
to deliver significant benefit for the town.  

 
Angela Jones 
Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure 
 

10 June 2022 
 
 
  
 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
No appendices 
 
Electoral Division(s):  Kendal Highgate & Kendal Strickland & Fell 
 

*  Please remove whichever option is not applicable 
 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

 No  

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?  No  

   

 

8



 

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
No previous relevant decisions 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact: Michael Barry, michael.barry@cumbria.gov.uk, 07733302913  
 
 

9

mailto:michael.barry@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL LEVELLING UP FUND APPLICATION

